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Plaintiff _____________ (“Plaintiff”), by and through his attorneys, alleges the following 

upon information and belief, except as to those allegations concerning Plaintiff, which are 

alleged upon personal knowledge. Plaintiff’s information and belief is based upon, among other 

things, his counsel’s investigation, which includes without limitation: (a) review and analysis of 

regulatory filings made by Tahoe Resources Inc. (“Tahoe” or the “Company”), with the United 

States (“U.S.”) Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”); (b) review and analysis of press 

releases and media reports issued by and disseminated by Tahoe; and (c) review of other publicly 

available information concerning Tahoe. 

NATURE OF THE ACTION AND OVERVIEW 

1. This is a class action on behalf of persons and entities that acquired Tahoe’s 

securities between April 3, 2013, and July 5, 2017, inclusive (the “Class Period”), against the 

Defendants,
1
 seeking to pursue remedies under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the 

“Exchange Act”). 

2. Tahoe is a mining company.  The Company’s “Escobal Mine” is located in 

Guatemala.  At Escobal, the Company claims that silver, gold, lead, and zinc are recovered by 

differential flotation, producing silver-rich lead concentrates and zinc concentrates which are 

sold to third-party smelters under concentrate sales arrangements. 

3. On April 3, 2013, the Company announced that it has received the Escobal 

exploitation license from Guatemala’s Ministry of Energy and Mines (the “MEM”), and that 

construction activities remained on-budget and on-schedule for mill commissioning in the 

second half of 2013 and commercial production in early 2014. 

4. Then, on July 5, 2017, the Company issued a press release disclosing that the 

Supreme Court of Guatemala issued a provisional decision suspending the Company’s Escobal 

mining license in connection with an action brought by the anti-mining organization, CALAS, 

against the MEM alleging that the MEM violated the Xinca Indigenous people’s right of 

consultation in advance of granting the Escobal mining license to Tahoe. 

                                                 

1
 “Defendants” refers to Tahoe Resources Inc., Ronald W. Clayton, C. Kevin McArthur, 

Alexander Black, Elizabeth McGregor, and Mark T. Sadler, collectively. 
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5. On this news, the Company’s share price fell $2.74 per share, or 33%, to close at 

$5.56 per share on July 6, 2017. 

6. Throughout the Class Period, Defendants made materially false and/or misleading 

statements, as well as failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company’s business, 

operations, and prospects. Specifically, Defendants failed to disclose: (1) that the Company’s 

Escobal mining license was granted in violation of the Xinca Indigenous people’s right of 

consultation; (2) that, as such, the license was at a heightened risk of being suspended; and (3) 

that, as a result of the foregoing, Defendants’ statements about Tahoe’s business, operations, and 

prospects, were false and misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis. 

7. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the precipitous 

decline in the market value of the Company’s securities, Plaintiff and other Class members have 

suffered significant losses and damages. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

8. The claims asserted herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange 

Act (15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC (17 

C.F.R. § 240.10b-5). 

9. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. § 1331 and Section 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78aa). 

10. Venue is proper in this Judicial District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) and 

Section 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78aa(c)).  Substantial acts in furtherance of the 

alleged fraud or the effects of the fraud have occurred in this Judicial District.  Many of the acts 

charged herein, including the dissemination of materially false and/or misleading information, 

occurred in substantial part in this Judicial District.  In addition, the Company’s principal 

executive offices are located in this Judicial District. 

11. In connection with the acts, transactions, and conduct alleged herein, Defendants 

directly and indirectly used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including the 

United States mail, interstate telephone communications, and the facilities of a national securities 

exchange.  
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PARTIES 

12. Plaintiff _____________, as set forth in the accompanying certification, 

incorporated by reference herein, purchased Tahoe securities during the Class Period, and 

suffered damages as a result of the federal securities law violations and false and/or misleading 

statements and/or material omissions alleged herein.  

13. Defendant Tahoe Resources Inc. is incorporated in British Columbia, Canada and 

its headquarters are in Reno, Nevada.  Tahoe’s common shares trade on the New York Stock 

Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol “TAHO.” 

14. Defendant Ronald W. Clayton (“Clayton”) was the Chief Operating Officer 

(“COO”) of Tahoe from April 1, 2010 until August 9, 2016, when he became the Chief 

Executive Officer (“CEO”).  Clayton was the CEO of Tahoe from August 9, 2016 through the 

end of the Class Period. 

15. Defendant C. Kevin McArthur (“McArthur”) was the CEO of Tahoe from 

November 10, 2009 to April 1, 2015, and from August 2015 to August 9, 2016. 

16. Defendant Alexander Black (“Black”) was the CEO of Tahoe from April 1, 2015 

to August 2015. 

17. Defendant Elizabeth McGregor (“McGregor”) was the Chief Financial Officer 

(“CFO”) of Tahoe form August 9, 2016 through the end of the Class Period.  McGregor was also 

the Treasurer of Tahoe from October 7, 2013 until August 9, 2016. 

18. Defendant Mark T. Sadler (“Sadler”) was the CFO of Tahoe form March 8, 2013 

until August 9, 2016. 

19. Defendants Clayton, McArthur, Black, McGregor, and Sadler (collectively the 

“Individual Defendants”), because of their positions with the Company, possessed the power and 

authority to control the contents of Tahoe’s reports to the SEC, press releases and presentations 

to securities analysts, money and portfolio managers and institutional investors, i.e., the market.  

The Individual Defendants were provided with copies of the Company’s reports and press 

releases alleged herein to be misleading prior to, or shortly after, their issuance and had the 

ability and opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be corrected.  Because of their 
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positions and access to material non-public information available to them, the Individual 

Defendants knew that the adverse facts specified herein had not been disclosed to, and were 

being concealed from, the public, and that the positive representations which were being made 

were then materially false and/or misleading.  The Individual Defendants are liable for the false 

statements pleaded herein.  

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

  

Background 

 

20. Tahoe is a mining company.  The Company’s “Escobal Mine” is located in 

Guatemala.  At Escobal, the Company claims that silver, gold, lead, and zinc are recovered by 

differential flotation, producing silver-rich lead concentrates and zinc concentrates which are 

sold to third-party smelters under concentrate sales arrangements. 

Materially False and Misleading 

Statements Issued During the Class Period 

 

21. The Class Period begins on April 3, 2013.  On that day, the Company issued a 

press release entitled “Tahoe’s Escobal Project Receives Final Permit.”  Therein, the Company, 

in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) is pleased to announce that it 

has received the Escobal exploitation license from Guatemala’s Ministry of 

Energy and Mines. Construction activities remain on-budget and on-schedule for 

mill commissioning in the second half of 2013 and commercial production in 

early 2014. 

 

22. On May 10, 2013, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe Reports 

2013 First Quarter Results.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) today reported financial 

results for the quarter ending March 31, 2013, and provided updates regarding its 

flagship Escobal silver project in Guatemala and the Company’s Five Year Plan. 

 

Financial Results for 1Q 2013 

Highlights for the first quarter of 2013 include (stated in U.S. dollars): 

 

 Net earnings/(loss) for the quarter amounted to ($24.9 million) or ($0.17) 

per share. 

 Cash outflow from operating activities amounted to $28.0 million. 

 Corporate G&A expense amounted to $3.4 million, excluding non-cash 

La
w O

ffic
es

 of
 H

ow
ard

 G
. S

mith



CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

5 

share-based compensation of $1.3 million. 

 Exploration expenses amounted to $1.3 million. 

 A project-to-date total of $288.7 million of the $326.6 million budget has 

been spent towards construction of the 3,500 tonne per day (tpd) Escobal 

project. 

 Cash and equivalents at quarter-end were $107.2 million. 

  

Full financial results as well as the Company’s MD&A and other filings 

will be filed on SEDAR (www.sedar.com) and the Company’s website 

(www.tahoeresourcesinc.com) later today. 

 

Escobal Project Update  

The construction and underground development of the Escobal project is 

continuing on-schedule and on budget. Engineering, procurement and 

construction management was at 79 percent completion and underground 

development necessary for commencement of production was at 90 percent 

completion as of March 31, 2013. The Company completed 1,937 metres of 

underground development during the first quarter and 7,144 metres to date. 

 

Mill commissioning is projected to begin in the second half of 2013 with 

commercial production expected in early 2014. All major components are in 

place, and the focus has turned to piping and electrical systems in the mill, 

completion of steel erection, conveyor installation and civil engineering work at 

the tailings facility. Dry commissioning of the crusher and milling circuit is 

expected to take place in the second quarter. 

 

Underground work has been expanded to primary stope development. Numerous 

vein cross-cuts on the 1290 and 1265 levels have been established, and drilling of 

the first slot raises and stope blastholes are underway. Rock conditions in the 

production areas are as projected in the model defined in the May, 2012 

Preliminary Economic Analysis (PEA). 

 

23. On July 10, 2013, the Company issued a press release entitled “Guatemala 

Proposes Temporary Moratorium on New Mining Licenses.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant 

part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) reports Guatemala President 

Otto Perez Molina announced during his weekly television address Tuesday 

evening, that in an effort to promote consensus in congress and to advance 

support for mining in Guatemala, he will ask congress to approve a two-year 

temporary moratorium on the granting of new mining and exploration licenses. 

 

Based on discussions with government officials, Tahoe believes the pause in 

permitting will allow the Energy and Mines Ministry and congress to focus on 

revisions to the mining law that were proposed earlier this year. President Perez 

Molina and mining minister Erick Archila have assured Tahoe that this action will 

in no way affect the exploitation license that the government granted earlier this 
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year for the Escobal project. 

 

The president’s weekly television show was taped at the Tahoe’s Escobal project 

during the president’s visit on Monday, July 8, 2013. In a very positive 

atmosphere, he met with mine employees and their families following a tour of 

the project. 

 

Tahoe holds licenses on 158 square kilometres, including 20 square kilometres of 

which are held on the Escobal project. None of these licenses will be affected by 

the proposed action. A number of reconnaissance and exploration licenses remain 

pending, and this change is not expected to impact the company’s priority rights 

to these licenses in the future. 

 

Tahoe President and CEO Kevin McArthur said, “Mine construction is going 

extremely well and preliminary commissioning activities are underway. While we 

are disappointed with the potential effects to our regional exploration programs, 

Tahoe will continue to work with the Guatemalan government to amend the 

mining law, ensuring a profitable mining industry and continued economic 

prosperity in the country. 

 

“While most of our prospective ground is in areas where we hold approved 

licenses, we will have to pull back on some of our regional work for a period of 

time,” added Mr. McArthur. 

 

24. On July 18, 2013, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe to Clarify 

PEA Disclosure.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX:THO) (NYSE:TAHO) announced today that as a 

result of a review by the British Columbia Securities Commission (BCSC), Tahoe 

will be issuing a news release sometime in the next week to clarify certain of its 

disclosures in the May 7, 2012 Escobal Preliminary Economic Assessment (PEA) 

and other corporate materials. In addition to yesterday's request, the BCSC 

advised Tahoe that it has placed the company on its Issuers in Default list until 

such clarification is made. 

 

Tahoe President and CEO Kevin McArthur said, "Tahoe is working with the 

BCSC to address its questions. The Escobal start-up schedule remains unaffected. 

Mill commissioning has commenced, with crusher trial runs this week, leading to 

wet mill commissioning by late third quarter." 

 

25. On July 24, 2013, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe to Clarify 

PEA Disclosure.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Further to its July 18th news release, Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX:THO) 

(NYSE:TAHO) announced today that as a result of a review by the British 

Columbia Securities Commission (BCSC), Tahoe is issuing the following news 

release to clarify its disclosure. 
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Amended Technical Report 

 

As a result of comments raised by the BCSC in its review of the Company's May 

7, 2012 Preliminary Economic Assessment (PEA), the Company will file today an 

amended technical report entitled "Escobal Guatemala Project, NI 43-101 

Preliminary Economic Assessment, Southeastern Guatemala" dated July 24, 2013 

(Amended PEA). The Amended PEA was prepared by M3 Engineering & 

Technology Corporation. The changes reflected in the Amended PEA include the 

following: 

 

 The certificates of qualified persons have been amended to ensure that at 

least one qualified person is responsible for each section of the Amended 

PEA, 

 

 Section 3 of the PEA entitled "Reliance on Other Experts" includes a 

disclaimer of responsibility for information derived from a previously 

filed technical report on the Escobal Project entitled "Escobal Project 

Guatemala NI 43-101 Technical Report" dated 30 April 2010. While 

National Instrument 43-101 Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Projects 

("NI 43-101") permits use of the information from such previous report, it 

does not permit the authors of the PEA to disclaim responsibility for such 

information. This disclaimer has been removed from the Amended PEA, 

 

 The Amended PEA includes revised disclosure relating to project 

infrastructure and market studies and contracts, as required by NI 43-101, 

 

 The Amended PEA includes cautionary language stating that mineral 

resources that are not mineral reserves do not have demonstrated 

economic viability, 

 

 The PEA included diluted resource estimates used in establishing the 

economic model that do not comply with NI 43-101. These estimates do 

not constitute an initial reserve estimate, have been removed from the 

Amended PEA, and should not be relied upon, 

 

 The PEA included statements relating to economic viability, production 

and the nature of the PEA which are contrary to the cautionary language 

required by NI 43-101 and have been removed from the Amended PEA. 

 

None of the economic aspects of the Amended PEA differ from the PEA. 

 

Additional Technical Disclosure Matters 

 

The Company has disclosed the results of its PEA in news releases and investor 

materials available on its website. In certain of these news releases and investor 

materials, the Company did not include proximate cautionary language required 

by NI 43-101. 
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Accordingly, investors are cautioned that the PEA is considered preliminary in 

nature and includes mineral resources, including inferred mineral resources that 

are considered too speculative geologically to have the economic considerations 

applied to them that would enable them to be categorized as mineral reserves. 

Mineral resources that are not mineral reserves have not yet demonstrated 

economic viability. Due to the uncertainty that may be attached to mineral 

resources, it cannot be assumed that all or any part of a mineral resource will be 

upgraded to mineral reserves. Therefore, there is no certainty that the results 

concluded in the PEA will be realized. 

 

The BCSC raised concerns that the Company may be treating its PEA as a proxy 

for a pre- feasibility study. The Company advises investors that it is not treating 

the PEA as a pre- feasibility study, and directs investors to the following 

disclosure in its current Annual Information Form and MD&A for information on 

certain risks associated with a production decision made in the absence of a 

feasibility study: 

 

Production Decision 

The Company has not based its production decision on a feasibility study 

of mineral reserves, demonstrating economic and technical viability, and, 

as a result, there may be an increased uncertainty of achieving any 

particular level of recovery of minerals or the cost of such recovery, 

including increased risks associated with developing a commercially 

mineable deposit. Historically, such projects have a much higher risk of 

economic and technical failure. There is no guarantee that production will 

begin as anticipated or at all or that anticipated production costs will be 

achieved. Failure to commence production would have a material adverse 

impact on the Company's ability to generate revenue and cash flow to fund 

operations. Failure to achieve the anticipated production costs would have 

a material adverse impact on the Company's cash flow and future 

profitability. 

 

Exploitation Permit Unaffected by Lower Court Ruling 

 

Late yesterday, a court of appeal in Guatemala stated that the Ministry of Energy 

and Mines (MEM) should have conducted a hearing of a written opposition to the 

Escobal exploitation license during the permitting period. The court did not rule 

on the substance or validity of the opposition, merely stating that MEM was 

obligated to hold an administrative hearing. The court did not invalidate or 

comment on the Escobal exploitation license in its decision. 

 

According to Tahoe President and CEO, Kevin McArthur, "The legality of the 

license is not in question and it remains fully effective. It is unfortunate that anti-

mining forces in Guatemala are misrepresenting the court's limited ruling. Based 

on our conversations with MEM and legal review, we believe the opposition is 

without legal or factual merit." 

 

"Operations at the mine are in full force and not affected in any way." said Mr. 
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McArthur. MEM and the Company are appealing the lower court's ruling to the 

Constitutional Court, which is expected to issue a decision in the next several 

months. 

 

Escobal Update (stated in U.S. dollars) 

 

Tahoe significantly advanced underground development and construction in the 

second quarter of 2013. Underground development has been completed to the 

point where the mine will be capable of feeding the mill up to the 3500 tpd rate. 

Construction progress on the mill, tailings and backfill plant projects was 85% 

complete by quarter-end. Commissioning activities commenced in June, and the 

Company estimates it holds sufficient cash resources to bring the mine to 

production in early 2014. 

 

As of June 30, 2013 the Company's cash balance was $99.2 million, which 

includes the proceeds of the $50 million credit facility and the Company has 

expended $316 million of the original $326.6 million capital expenditure for the 

3500 tpd operation. Additionally, $13.5 million has been spent of the $46.2 

million estimated cost of the 4500 tpd expansion which is expected to be 

completed by 2017. 

 

Escobal construction and development continues on budget and on schedule, and 

early commissioning activities are now underway. Updated photographs of mill 

progress and video of crusher start-up can be found on the Company's website 

at www.TahoeResourcesInc.com. 

 

26. On August 8, 2013, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe Reports 

2013 Results.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX:THO)(NYSE:TAHO) today reported financial results 

for the year ending December 31, 2013, and provided a production update for its 

flagship Escobal silver mine in Guatemala. 

 

Tahoe President and CEO Kevin McArthur said, "We are very pleased with 

corporate performance through the end of 2013. Capital spending to complete the 

Escobal mine came in very close to our initial estimates and we were able to 

declare on-time commercial production, effective January 1, 2014." 

 

Highlights for 2013 include (all amounts in U.S. dollars unless otherwise stated): 

 

 Net earnings/(loss) for the year amounted to ($65.6 million) or ($0.45) per 

share. 

 Cash and equivalents at year-end were $8.8 million. 

 Cash outflow from operating activities amounted to $65.5 million. 

 Corporate general and administrative (G&A) expense amounted to $13.8 

million, excluding non-cash share-based compensation of $5.7 million. 

 Exploration expenses amounted to $5.3 million. 

 The first precious metal concentrate shipment was on October 15, 2013. 
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During 2013, the Company incurred $36.4 million in Escobal project expenses. 

Upon receipt of the exploitation permit in April 2013, the Company commenced 

capitalization of underground expenses associated with the Escobal project. For 

the year, the Company capitalized construction and sustaining costs of $45.6 

million relating to underground infrastructure and development, as well as $121.8 

million relating to surface infrastructure. Pre-operating revenues in excess of 

expenses of $9.3 million were credited back to the project during the year. 

 

Complete financial results as well as the Company's management's discussion and 

analysis and other filings will be filed on SEDAR (www.sedar.com) and the 

Company's website (www.tahoeresourcesinc.com). 

 

Escobal Production 

 

Wet commissioning of the mill and initial production of concentrates began at the 

end of the third quarter of 2013. The first precious metal concentrate shipment 

was made on October 15, and production ramp-up proceeded smoothly 

throughout the quarter. 

 

At December 31, 2013, access to approximately 262,000 tonnes of mill feed was 

fully developed underground and an additional 64,000 tonnes were stored on the 

surface stockpile. Primary development was completed for approximately five 

years of mill feed. 

 

Mill throughput during the fourth quarter was 159,200 tonnes with average grades 

of 483 grams of silver per tonne, 0.54 grams of gold per tonne, 0.66% lead and 

.96% zinc. Silver grade mined was slightly better than predicted by the resource 

model. Due to the very small population of data seen to date, the Company 

cautions against extrapolating these results over the remaining 18-year mine life. 

 

27. On November 12, 2013, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe 

Reports 2013 Results.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) today reported financial 

results for the quarter ending September 30, 2013, and provided updates regarding 

its flagship Escobal silver project in Guatemala. The Company’s board of 

directors approved the 2014 budget and five year plan, and details of the 2014 

budget forecast are provided. 

 

Highlights for the third quarter of 2013 include (stated in U.S. dollars): 

 

 First concentrates produced during 3Q and first concentrate shipment on 

October 15, 2013. 

 Net earnings/(loss) for the quarter amounted to ($15.5 million) or ($0.11) 

per share. 

 Cash outflow from operating activities amounted to $9.0 million. 

 Corporate general and administrative (G&A) expense amounted to $3.6 
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million, excluding non-cash share-based compensation of $1.5 million. 

 Exploration expenses amounted to $1.2 million. 

 A project-to-date total of $317.9 million of the $326.6 million budget has 

been spent towards construction of the 3500 tonnes per day (tpd) Escobal 

project. 

 Additionally, $35.8 million has been spent towards expansion to 4500 tpd. 

 Cash and equivalents at quarter-end were $39.2 million including net 

proceeds of $50 million drawn from the Company’s credit facility in June. 

 

Complete financial results as well as the Company’s management’s discussion 

and analysis and other filings will be filed on SEDAR (www.sedar.com) and the 

Company’s website (www.tahoeresourcesinc.com). 

 

Tahoe Resources’ senior management will host a conference call to discuss the 

third quarter results at 8:00 a.m. Pacific Time on Wednesday, November 13, 

2013. To join the conference call please dial 1-800-319-4610 (toll free from 

Canada and the U.S.) or +1-604-638-5340 (from outside Canada and the U.S.). A 

recording of the call will be available later that day at the Company’s website, 

www.TahoeResourcesInc.com. 

 

Escobal Project Update 

 

Mill commissioning continued through the quarter with first metals concentrate 

being produced on September 30, 2013 and the first concentrate being shipped on 

October 15, 2013. The Company plans to ramp-up to full production at the 3500 

tpd level by the first quarter of 2014. 

 

The team at Escobal completed 2,102 metres of underground development during 

the quarter and 10,934 metres total to date. At the end of the quarter, ten stopes 

(underground mining areas) were available for production and an additional ten 

stopes were in final development. Stockpiled mill feed totaled 97,250 tonnes at an 

estimated grade of 487 grams per tonne (g/t) silver, 0.4 g/t gold, 0.7% lead and 

1.3% zinc. 

All major components except the paste backfill plant have been fully 

commissioned to-date, and no impediments or bottlenecks to the 3500 tpd 

designed capacity have been identified. The paste plant is scheduled to be 

commissioned during the fourth quarter when the first mined-out stope is 

available for cemented backfill placement. 

 

Mill optimization operations are underway to produce commercially viable metals 

concentrates to the specifications outlined in the May 2012 Preliminary Economic 

Assessment (PEA). This work is moving forward satisfactorily and regular 

concentrate shipments to smelters have been underway for the past several weeks. 

The present priorities are to bring the metals concentrate qualities up to 

commercial specifications and to increase mill throughput to 3500 tpd. 

 

* * * 
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Throughput rates for the first 10 days of November have averaged 1655 tpd with 

plant utilization of 70%. Improved tailings filtration will be critical to successful 

ramp-up. An abrasion resistant filter cloth has been implemented and optimization 

of filter cycle times and thickener operation is now underway. Operational 

parameters have fluctuated, as expected, and debottlenecking efforts have 

demonstrated continuous improvement. To-date, 891 tonnes of precious metal 

concentrates have been shipped from the mine site. 

 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the third quarter amounted to $39.2 

million including net proceeds drawn in June 2013 from the $50 million credit 

facility. Given current ramp-up progress and the projected income generated by 

growing metals concentrate sales, it is estimated that cash on hand is adequate to 

bring the project to full production by early 2014. 

 

28. On January 14, 2014, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe 

Announces Commercial Production at Escobal.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX:THO)(NYSE:TAHO) is pleased to announce that its 

Escobal mine in Guatemala has reached commercial production. Operations 

commenced in late September 2013 and production has been ramping towards the 

3500 tonne per day (tpd) target level since that time. 

 

Tahoe President and CEO Kevin McArthur said, "Our Guatemalan team has done 

a terrific job in delivering this world-scale silver mine within four years of the 

company's initial public offering. While we continue to optimize the mill, tailings 

filtration and paste backfill operations, this has been a remarkable start-up for a 

precious metals flotation plant over a very short time period." 

 

"I am also pleased to report that we have commenced paying Guatemalan income 

taxes and look forward to making our first agreed upon royalty payments in the 

near future," added Mr. McArthur. "Escobal mine has been designed and 

constructed to the highest environmental and social responsibility standards. We 

are very gratified to be working with our Guatemalan partners to bring sustainable 

benefits to a broad region of southeastern Guatemala through the development of 

Escobal." 

 

Commercial Production Criteria 

 

Management has determined that commercial production at the Escobal mine has 

commenced as the mine is now operating as intended, based on the following 

achievements: 

 

1. Completion of the operational commissioning of each major mine and 

plant component. 

2. The demonstrated ability of the Escobal mine to operate consistently and 

without significant interruption at a production rate exceeding 70 percent 

of design capacity. 

3. Operating results have been sustainable and are improving over time. 

La
w O

ffic
es

 of
 H

ow
ard

 G
. S

mith



CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

13 

4. Metal concentrates produced have consistently met minimum concentrate 

specifications. 

5. The Company's metal concentrate products have demonstrated strong 

customer demand. 

 

For accounting purposes the Company will commence recognizing net income 

from production effective January 1, 2014. 

 

Escobal Mine Update 

 

Mill start-up activities commenced in late September, approximately three months 

behind schedule due to unanticipated social issues which have been addressed. 

From mid-December through the present, the plant consistently achieved strong 

results, with steady improvements to mill throughput. To date, the mill has 

produced 5,970 tonnes of silver-bearing concentrates with an estimated net value 

(net smelter return) of approximately $54.3 million. Quality has been outstanding 

with minimal penalties associated with either the zinc or lead concentrates. 

 

Production graphs are appended to this release demonstrating daily mill 

throughput, concentrate quality and silver recoveries. Mill throughput reached 

2500 tpd in mid-December, then 3000 tpd in early January. Work is currently 

underway to complete ramp-up to the 3500 tpd design rate. 

 

* * * 

 

Metallurgical response at Escobal has met the parameters projected in the May 

2013 Preliminary Economic Assessment (PEA). Silver recovery has reached the 

expected average recovery rate of 86.8 percent and significant progress has been 

made in concentrate quality since October. Lead and zinc concentrates have met 

the minimum specifications established by the Company and optimization of 

concentrate grades and recoveries will take place over the next few months. In 

order to minimize losses and to protect the environment, concentrates are bagged 

and placed into containers for shipment to smelters. 

 

All major mine and mill components have been commissioned and are operating 

to specification. The Company identified several items for improvement in the 

ramp-up to commercial production: 

 

 Unusual tertiary crusher liner wear was experienced due to uneven feed 

characteristics. This problem was resolved in November. 

 Also in November, abnormal ball mill bearing temperatures were 

observed. This situation was resolved through repair of a malfunctioning 

lubrication system. 

 Throughput fluctuations experienced during mill commissioning in 

November and early December caused thickener and filtration 

performance issues. Adjustments made to coarsen grind size and changes 

to thickener reagents resulted in operational improvements. 

 Early in commissioning, the tailings filter circuit experienced high filter 
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cloth wear and maintenance issues. The filters have been refitted with 

abrasion-resistant cloths leading to higher throughput rates. 

 Paste plant commissioning was completed in December when the first 

underground stope was available for backfilling. In order to meet backfill 

requirements, the moisture content of the tailings was increased to 

improve paste plant performance. 

 

Mill performance continues to show consistent improvement. Although 

commissioning of the mill has been completed, an engineering solution to further 

optimize the paste plant system is under review. 

 

The underground mine and development programs continue to meet 2014 plan 

requirements. Primary development has been completed for approximately five 

years of mill feed. 

 

Stope development is proceeding on four sublevels, with several stopes currently 

in production on the 1265 level. The location and thickness of the Escobal vein as 

modeled in the May 2012 PEA is being confirmed by mining and close-spaced 

stope definition drilling. While it is too early to draw any conclusions given the 

limited number of stopes in production, silver grades as predicted by the resource 

model in the areas being mined appear to be slightly conservative. The average 

production grade to date is slightly higher than modeled estimates and there is 

only minor variance between the overall predicted and actual production tonnages 

to date. 

 

Development to access the second mining front on the 1190 level continues to 

advance in each of the two primary development ramps. Development of a third 

internal ramp to access the Escobal East Zone commenced in the fourth quarter of 

2013. Excavation of the primary ventilation exhaust shaft is nearing on-time 

completion, with fan installation scheduled for the first quarter of 2014. 

 

The Company expects to produce 18 to 21 million ounces of silver contained in 

metals concentrates during 2014 (see Tahoe press release dated November 12, 

2013). Given the ramp-up profile, the Company cautions that in the first half of 

the year, silver production will be lower and associated operating costs will be 

higher than during the second half of the year. 

 

In order to supplement working capital during the commissioning and ramp-up 

period, the Company drew down an additional $25 million from its debt facility. 

The total drawn on the facility now amounts to $75 million. Upon draw-down on 

January 2, 2014, the Company's cash balance amounted to approximately $33 

million. 

 

Mr. McArthur stated, "We are very pleased with the rapid progress to date and we 

are now focused on completing the ramp-up to 3500 tpd. Our secondary focus is 

on completing a resource update, optimizing life-of-mine operations with a 

feasibility study and calculating proven and probable reserves in the third quarter 

of this year." 
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29. On March 13, 2014, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe Reports 

2013 Results.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) today reported financial 

results for the year ending December 31, 2013, and provided a production update 

for its flagship Escobal silver mine in Guatemala. 

 

Tahoe President and CEO Kevin McArthur said, “We are very pleased with 

corporate performance through the end of 2013. Capital spending to complete the 

Escobal mine came in very close to our initial estimates and we were able to 

declare on-time commercial production, effective January 1, 2014.” 

 

Highlights for 2013 include (all amounts in U.S. dollars unless otherwise stated): 

 

 Net earnings/(loss) for the year amounted to ($65.6 million) or ($0.45) per 

share. 

 Cash and equivalents at year-end were $8.8 million. 

 Cash outflow from operating activities amounted to $65.5 million. 

 Corporate general and administrative (G&A) expense amounted to $13.8 

million, excluding non-cash share-based compensation of $5.7 million. 

 Exploration expenses amounted to $5.3 million. 

 The first precious metal concentrate shipment was on October 15, 2013. 

 

During 2013, the Company incurred $36.4 million in Escobal project expenses. 

Upon receipt of the exploitation permit in April 2013, the Company commenced 

capitalization of underground expenses associated with the Escobal project. For 

the year, the Company capitalized construction and sustaining costs of $45.6 

million relating to underground infrastructure and development, as well as $124.8 

million relating to surface infrastructure. Pre-operating revenues in excess of 

expenses of $9.3 million were credited back to the project during the year. 

 

Complete financial results as well as the Company’s management’s discussion 

and analysis and other filings will be filed on SEDAR (www.sedar.com) and the 

Company’s website (www.tahoeresourcesinc.com). 

 

Escobal Production  

 

Wet commissioning of the mill and initial production of concentrates began at the 

end of the third quarter of 2013. The first precious metal concentrate shipment 

was made on October 15, and production ramp-up proceeded smoothly 

throughout the quarter. 

 

At December 31, 2013, access to approximately 262,000 tonnes of mill feed was 

fully developed underground and an additional 64,000 tonnes were stored on the 

surface stockpile.  Primary development was completed for approximately five 

years of mill feed. 
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Mill throughput during the fourth quarter was 159,200 tonnes with average grades 

of 483 grams of silver per tonne, 0.54 grams of gold per tonne, 0.66% lead and 

.96% zinc.  Silver grade mined was slightly better than predicted by the resource 

model. Due to the very small population of data seen to date, the Company 

cautions against extrapolating these results over the remaining 18-year mine life. 

 

 
 

During 2013 commissioning, 2,723 tonnes of concentrate were shipped and sold 

to third parties.  Revenue generated from concentrate sales of $28.0 million was 

offset by $18.7 million of production costs and the net was credited against 

mineral property, land, plant and equipment, as commercial production had not 

yet commenced. 

 

The Company anticipates producing between 18 and 21 million ounces of silver 

in concentrates in 2014 at an all-in sustaining cost of less than $10.00 per ounce 

(see press release dated November 12, 2013 and cautionary note below). The 

Company has guided that 2014 production will not be divided equally over the 

four quarters of 2014. Ramp-up of production will continue during the first half 

while the paste plant optimization is underway. Consequently, production in the 

first half of the year is expected to be lower than that of the second half, and costs 

in the first half are expected to be slightly higher. 

 

30. On March 11, 2015, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe 

Resources Reports Strong First Production Year.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, 

stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) today reported financial and 

operational results for the fourth quarter and the year ending December 31, 2014, 

with the Company completing its first year of commercial production at the 

Escobal mine. 

 

Highlights for Q4 2014 and the year ending December 31, 2014 are (all amounts 

in U.S. dollars unless otherwise stated): 

 

 Silver produced in concentrate was 5.2 million ounces and 20.3 million 

ounces during the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, 

respectively. 

 Revenue generated from concentrate sales was $65.4 million and $350.3 

million for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, 

respectively. Fourth quarter revenues were impacted by a large year-end 

inventory of concentrate which is being sold in the first quarter of 2015. 

Additionally, provisional pricing and sales adjustments negatively 

impacted revenue and resulted in a realized price of $14.99 per ounce of 
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silver in the fourth quarter, compared to an average LBMA price of 

$16.50. 

 Total cash cost per silver ounce produced net of byproduct credits for the 

fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2014 was $6.26 and $6.37, 

respectively. 

 All-in sustaining cost per silver ounce produced net of byproduct credits 

for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2014 was $9.09 and 

$9.15, respectively. Net earnings attributable to common shareholders 

amounted to $9.8 million and $90.8 million for the fourth quarter and year 

ended December 31, 2014 or $0.07 and $0.62 basic earnings per share, 

respectively. 

 After-tax realizable value of year-end concentrate inventories in excess of 

normal levels ranged between $12 and $15 million. This equates to a 

range $0.08 to $0.10 per share in unrealized earnings for the fourth quarter 

and year ended December 31, 2014. 

 Net cash provided by operating activities was $17.8 million and $119.3 

million for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, 

respectively. 

 Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2014 were $80.4 million. 

 Mill throughput during the fourth quarter totaled 319,632 tonnes and 

averaged 3,474 tonnes per day (tpd) while totals for the year were 1.25 

million tonnes and averaged 3,413 tpd. 

 The Company reported its first Proven and Probable Mineral Reserve 

estimates with the publication of a NI 43-101 Feasibility Study released 

November 5, 2014. 

 The Company drew and repaid $25 million of its debt facility during the 

year. 

 The Board of Directors approved a monthly dividend of $0.02 per share 

commencing in December 2014. 

 

These results reflect final year-end adjustments, and, to the extent they differ, 

supercede those provided in the February 17, 2015 press release which reported 

select preliminary unaudited financial information for 2014. 

 

31. On March 9, 2016, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe Resources 

Reports Record Production And Cash Flow.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) today reported financial and 

operational results for the fourth quarter and the year ending December 31, 2015, 

with the Company completing its second year of commercial silver production at 

the Escobal mine and the first year of operating the La Arena mine in Peru.  

  

Highlights for Q4 2015 and the year ending December 31, 2015 are (all amounts 

in U.S. dollars unless otherwise stated): 

 

 Adjusted net earnings for 2015 were $98.9 million, resulting in both basic 

and diluted adjusted earnings per share of $0.48. Adjusted net earnings for 

the fourth quarter were $51.0 million, or $0.22per share, for both basic and 
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diluted shares. 

 Net loss for 2015 was $71.9 million, resulting in both basic and diluted 

adjusted loss per share of $0.35. Net loss for the fourth quarter was $107.7 

million, or $0.47 per share, for both basic and diluted shares. 

 Cash flow provided by operating activities before changes in working 

capital was $226.3 million for 2015, or $1.09 per share, and $96.8 

million and $0.43 per share for the fourth quarter. 

 The Company returned $49.7 million to shareholders through its monthly 

dividend during 2015 compared to $3.0 million during 2014. 

 Silver produced in concentrate at the Escobal mine was 5.5 million ounces 

during the fourth quarter and 20.4 million ounces for the year 

ended December 31, 2015. 

 Gold produced at the La Arena mine amounted to 174,073 ounces in dore 

for Tahoe's three calendar quarters of ownership following the Rio Alto 

merger, and 230,483 ounces for the full year mine production. 

 Total cash costs net of byproduct credits for 2015 were $6.16 per silver 

ounce produced and $551 per gold ounce produced compared to $6.37 per 

silver ounce and no gold production in 2014. 

 All-in sustaining costs net of byproduct credits for 2015 were $9.11 per 

silver ounce produced and $733per gold ounce produced compared 

to $9.15 and no gold production in 2014. 

 Net cash provided by operating activities was $54.2 million and $166.7 

million for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2015, 

respectively. 

 Commissioning at the Shahuindo mine commenced in the fourth quarter of 

2015 with commercial production expected in the second quarter of 2016. 

 Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2015 were $108.7 million. 

 

According to Tahoe CEO and Executive Chair Kevin McArthur, "2015 was a 

tremendous year for Tahoe as both the Escobal and La Arena mines achieved 

record production and the Shahuindo mine phase 1 construction was completed 

on time and on budget. We paid off $50 million in debt, established a $150 

million revolving credit facility and returned $49.7 million to shareholders in 

dividends." 

 

"While low year-end metal prices created a non-cash impairment situation, our 

adjusted earnings per share are outstanding, and reflect our many 

accomplishments this year. I am very proud of our team's work."  

 

Mr. McArthur added, "We are cognizant of the relative underperformance of our 

shares over the last twelve months, much of which occurred due to extraneous 

and/or non-recurring circumstances. We expect our latest initiatives will enhance 

our track record of long-term shareholder value." 

 

* * * 

 

Escobal Results 
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Average mill throughput at the Escobal mine was 4,065 tpd, with an average 

silver head grade of 522 grams per tonne (g/t) for the fourth quarter 2015 

compared to average mill throughput of 3,474 tpd with an average silver head 

grade of 585 g/t for the fourth quarter of 2014. Average mill throughput was 

4,133 tpd, with an average silver head grade of 487 g/t for 2015 compared to 

average mill throughput of 3,413 tpd with an average silver head grade of 585 g/t 

for 2014. 

 

The mine produced metal concentrates containing 5.5 million ounces of silver, 

3,387 ounces of gold, 3,075 tonnes of lead and 4,412 tonnes of zinc for the fourth 

quarter of 2015. For the full year 2015, the mine produced metal concentrates 

which contained 20.4 million ounces of silver, 11,742 ounces of gold, 10,153 

tonnes of lead and 14,810 tonnes of zinc. Average silver recovery to concentrates 

was 87.9 percent and 86.3 percent for the fourth quarter 2015 and the year 

ended December 31, 2015. 

 

The expansion from 3500 tpd to 4500 tpd throughput capacity was completed 

during 2015 within the budgeted amount. The fourth tailings filter and the new 

paste plant have been commissioned and are currently operating as designed. 

Mine development of the second mining front in the Central Zone and 

development to the East Zone was completed as scheduled and budgeted during 

the year. 

 

32. On March 9, 2017, the Company issued a press release entitled “Tahoe Achieves 

Record Production And Cash Flow Per Share In 2016.”  Therein, the Company, in relevant part, 

stated: 

- Company achieves production and cost guidance for third consecutive year 

 

- Record silver and gold production in 2016 with lowest ever total cash and 

all-in sustaining costs ("AISC") at Escobal 

 

- Record gold production in Q4 2016 offset by lower metal prices and sales, 

impact of non-cash, non-recurring item and increased expenses 

 

- New three-year guidance includes gold production growth to over 500 

thousand ounces in 2019 with low AISC and declining capital expenditures. 

 

VANCOUVER, British Columbia, March 9, 2017 /PRNewswire/ -- Tahoe 

Resources Inc. ("Tahoe" or the "Company") (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) today 

announced financial and operating results for the fourth quarter and full-year 

2016. Full-year 2016 results include strong operating performances from both the 

silver and gold businesses, record cash flow per share and improved balance sheet 

strength, with cash and cash equivalents of $163.4 million at year end. Q4 2016 

earnings declined from the prior quarter largely reflecting lower revenue, the 

impact of a non-cash, non-recurring deferred tax charge related to an increase in 

tax rates in Peru and increased expenses. Key performance areas are reviewed 
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below. 

 

Q4 2016 

 

Record gold production highlights strong operating results in Q4 2016 – The 

Company achieved record quarterly gold production of 119.9 thousand ounces in 

Q4 2016, with silver production totaling 4.8 million ounces. Total cash costs and 

AISC averaged $594 and $945, respectively, per gold ounce, and $6.48 and $9.76, 

respectively per ounce of silver  in Q4 2016. 

 

Q4 2016 earnings include non-cash, non-recurring tax charge – Earnings in 

Q4 2016 were  $0.3 million or $0.00 per share, while adjusted earnings for the 

quarter were $18.4 million or $0.06 per share. The $0.06 per share difference 

between earnings and adjusted earnings was due to a $19.3 million or $0.06 per 

share non-cash, non-recurring deferred tax expense related to an increase in the 

statutory tax rate in Peru to 29.5% as of January 1, 2017. 

 

Q4 2016 adjusted earnings and cash flows impacted by weaker realized metal 

prices and higher expenses –Cash flow provided by operating activities before 

changes in working capital in Q4 2016 totaled $74.7 million or $0.24 per share, a 

reduction of 40% from the previous quarter ("Q3 2016") on a per-share basis. 

The $18.4 million or $0.06 per share of adjusted earnings in Q4 2016 were $47.3 

million or $0.15 per share lower than the prior quarter. Of the after-

tax $0.15reduction in adjusted earnings, approximately two-thirds or $0.10 per 

share relates to  a $45.3 million or 19% decrease in revenue resulting from lower 

metal prices and sales. Approximately 70% of the reduction in revenue is due to 

lower prices, with the largest impact being a $6.19 per ounce or 30% decrease in 

the average realized silver price in Q4 2016 to $14.45 per ounce. The average 

realized price was 16% below the average spot price of $17.19 per ounce, 

reflecting negative pricing adjustments on provisionally priced silver ounces and 

final settlements. Contributing approximately 30% of the reduction in revenue 

were lower gold and silver sales, reflecting timing differences between 

production, final settlements and the shipment of inventories. Higher depreciation, 

royalty, exploration and general and administrative expenses accounted for the 

remainder of the reduction from the prior quarter.
(See Endote) 

 

2016 

 

Record silver production and per ounce costs – Total silver production in 2016 

was a record 21.3 million ounces, which beat the Company's guidance for the 

year. Total cash costs and AISC per ounce of silver produced, net of byproduct 

credits, were also a record and included total cash costs of $5.84 and AISC 

of $8.06. Both total cash costs and AISC achieved the Company's improved 

guidance that was announced in August 2016. 

 

Strong growth in gold production – Record gold production of 385.1 thousand 

ounces in 2016 achieved guidance and more than doubled from 2015. The strong 

production growth reflected the acquisition of Lake Shore Gold on April 1, 2016, 
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the achievement of commercial production at the Shahuindo mine in Peru (at 

10,000 tonnes per day) on May 1, 2016 and a full year of results at the La Arena 

mine in 2016, after it was acquired with Shahuindo in April 2015. Total cash costs 

and AISC per ounce of gold produced in 2016 of $620 and $943, respectively, 

were below their respective target ranges for the year. 

 

Record cash flow per share highlights strong 2016 financial results – Cash 

flow provided by operating activities before changes in working capital totaled a 

record $385.9 million or $1.33 per share in 2016, an increase of 22% from 2015 

on a per-share basis. Adjusted earnings were $180.4 million or $0.62 per share 

versus $98.9 million or $0.48 per share the prior year. Strong growth in cash flow 

and adjusted earnings in 2016 largely resulted from a 51% increase in revenue, to 

a record $784.5 million, and lower per ounce operating costs at Escobal.  Earnings 

of $117.9 million or $0.41 per share were lower than adjusted earnings largely 

due to non-cash, non-recurring deferred tax expense related to an increase in tax 

rates in Peru, a non-cash, non-recurring loss on redemption of debentures and 

acquisition costs related to the Lake Shore Gold transaction. 

 

Industry-leading dividend – $69.4 million was paid to shareholders in dividends 

in 2016. 

 

Positive results from 2016 exploration programs in Peru and Canada – 

Exploration results in 2016 succeeded in identifying new near-pit, sandstone-

hosted oxide zones as well as three large mineralized district targets at Shahuindo 

and extended mineralization at and around the Timmins West and Bell Creek 

mines in Canada. The exploration results highlight the potential to extend mine 

life and grow production in both countries. (See press release entitled, "Tahoe 

Resources Reports 2016 Exploration Results," dated January 9, 2017.)  

 

New guidance highlights strong near-term growth in low-cost gold 

production – New three-year guidance includes growth to over 500,000 ounces 

of gold production in 2019, with capital requirements and AISC to peak in 2017 

before declining over the next two years. Both of the Company's two key growth 

projects, expanding Shahuindo to 36,000 tonnes per day and the deepening of the 

Bell Creek shaft, are on track for completion in mid-2018. With their completion, 

annual sustaining capital expenditures are expected to decline to between $100 

and $125 million, with project capital being reduced to $10 million or less 

(assuming no new projects) and AISC per ounce of gold improving to 

below $1,000.    

 

Ron Clayton, President and CEO of Tahoe, commented: "For the third 

consecutive year, our team met, and in some cases exceeded, our annual 

production and cost guidance. Escobal achieved record silver production, total 

cash costs and AISC, and once again demonstrated why it is one of the world's 

finest and most responsible silver producers. In our gold business, our operating 

cost performance was outstanding, which is very satisfying when you consider 

there are major capital projects ongoing at two of our mines. In Q4 2016, our 

Canadian operations had their best quarter since being acquired in April 2016. 

La
w O

ffic
es

 of
 H

ow
ard

 G
. S

mith



CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

22 

Financial results for the quarter were impacted by declining metal prices and non-

cash, non-recurring items. I am pleased to say that we have seen an improvement 

in metal prices since the beginning of 2017. 

 

"Looking ahead, we recently received the construction permit for the first 

crushing and agglomeration circuit at Shahuindo and, through an optimization 

review, have confirmed that recovery rates of at least 80% can be achieved at the 

mine through crushing and agglomeration to a capacity of 36,000 tonnes per day. 

Through the review, we have also identified opportunities to achieve slight 

reductions in capital and operating cost. With our plans at Shahuindo in place, we 

are in a position to release multi-year guidance for capital expenditures, as well as 

production and costs. Our new three-year guidance provides a clear road map for 

growing to over a half million ounces of gold production in 2019 with low capital 

requirements and operating costs. At that point, we will be well positioned to 

generate substantial amounts of free cash flow at anything close to current spot 

prices and to achieve our stated goal of 550,000 ounces of gold production by 

2020." 

 

33. The above statements identified in ¶¶21-32 were materially false and/or 

misleading since Defendants failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company’s 

business, operations, and prospects.  Specifically, Defendants failed to disclose: (1) that the 

Company’s Escobal mining license was granted in violation of the Xinca Indigenous people’s 

right of consultation; (2) that, as such, the license was at a heightened risk of being suspended; 

and (3) that, as a result of the foregoing, Defendants’ statements about Tahoe’s business, 

operations, and prospects, were false and misleading and/or lacked a reasonable basis. 

Disclosures at the End of the Class Period  

34. On July 5, 2017, the Company issued a press release entitled “Guatemalan Lower 

Court Issues Ruling On Tahoe's Mining License” disclosing that the Supreme Court of 

Guatemala issued a provisional decision suspending the Company’s Escobal mining license in 

connection with an action brought by the anti-mining organization, CALAS, against the MEM 

alleging that the MEM violated the Xinca Indigenous people’s right of consultation in advance of 

granting the Escobal mining license to Tahoe.  In greater part, the Company stated: 

Tahoe Resources Inc. (TSX: THO, NYSE: TAHO) ("Tahoe" or the "Company") 

today reported that the Company has learned that the Supreme Court 

of Guatemala has issued a provisional decision in respect of an action brought by 

the anti-mining organization, CALAS, against Guatemala's Ministry of Energy 

and Mines ("MEM").  The action alleges that MEM violated the Xinca 

Indigenous people's right of consultation in advance of granting the Escobal 
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mining license to Tahoe's Guatemalan subsidiary, Minera San Rafael.  The 

provisional decision is in respect of a request by CALAS for an order to 

temporarily suspend the license to operate the Escobal mine until the action is 

fully heard.  The Company understands that no Xinca representative or 

community is currently participating in the CALAS lawsuit against MEM.  

 

The provisional decision suspends the Escobal mining license of Minera San 

Rafael while the action is being reviewed by the court.  The Company was not a 

party to the action commenced by CALAS and did not previously have standing 

to make submissions to the court in respect of the provisional application.  This 

decision confers legal standing on the Company which will now take all legal 

steps possible to have the ruling reversed and the license reinstated as soon as 

possible, including immediately appealing the decision to the Constitutional 

Court.  

 

The Guatemala Supreme Court is the initial trial court in Guatemala for 

constitutional actions filed against MEM.  Appeals from these decisions are heard 

by Guatemala's Constitutional Court.  Based on a prior ruling by the 

Constitutional Court involving consultation obligations with respect to a large 

natural resource project, the Company believes that its operating license should 

remain in effect while any additional consultation is completed.  Accordingly, the 

Company intends to both appeal the decision to the Constitutional Court and ask 

for the Supreme Court to reconsider its provisional ruling.   

 

The Company believes that all consultation obligations relating to the permitting 

of the Escobal license were met.  The last official census shows the San Rafael 

community to be 98.6% non-indigenous and with no Xinca community 

presence.  Despite the fact that the Escobal mine is not located in or impacting 

any indigenous communities of Guatemala, the Company understands that MEM 

held a consultation process that complied with the requirements set forth in ILO 

Convention 169.  

 

Based on its prior experience with Guatemalan court proceedings and evaluation 

of similar cases before the courts, the Company estimates the Constitutional Court 

could rule on the appeal within two to four months.  We will be seeking to have 

the license reinstated during this period. 

 

The Company also plans to file a motion for reconsideration with the Supreme 

Court, which is the lower court that issued the provisional decision. Based on 

prior cases, the Company cannot predict when the Supreme Court would rule on 

the motion for reconsideration. 

 

In addition, the Company will also be requesting the Supreme Court to resolve 

CALAS's definitive constitutional claim. The definitive constitutional claim and 

appeal process could take between 12 and 18 months.  

 

While the Company cannot determine at this time when or if the suspension will 

be rescinded and the license will be reinstated, including for purposes of 
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conducting a consultation process, we believe ILO 169 does not apply here, and if 

it did apply, was already met.  We understand that the effect of ruling in favour of 

CALAS could mean that consultation must occur before the suspension is 

revoked. It could also mean, as happened in similar cases in Guatemala, that the 

court could allow operations to resume while a consultation process is 

conducted.  We believe that the timeframe to undertake the consultation 

processes, and for a reconsideration of our application for the issue of the license, 

could be in the range of six to 12 months. 

 

Upon formal receipt of the order temporarily suspending the license for Escobal, 

the mine will be placed on stand-by and is planned to be maintained in a manner 

such that full production can be expeditiously resumed on a reversal of the 

suspension.  During this time, the Company will continue to maintain its high 

standard of security and environmental protection. 

 

Ron Clayton, President and CEO of Tahoe Resources Inc., commented: "We are 

extremely disappointed in the Court's ruling suspending the license because we 

believe that there are no indigenous communities affected by Escobal's 

operations. While the lack of indigenous communities in our area makes ILO 169 

inapplicable, there is nevertheless extensive documentation evidencing that an 

ILO 169 consultation process was in fact conducted in the area of the mine.  We 

are acutely aware that an adverse ruling could have a significant adverse impact 

on our shareholders, partners, employees, vendors and community populations, as 

tax and royalty payments, along with purchases of operating supplies will be 

suspended during any period that the mine is not operating.  Escobal is our 

flagship mine which has been designed and operated to meet the highest 

environmental standards and we will make every effort to remove any suspension 

and bring Escobal back into operation as soon as possible.  We remain committed 

to protecting our employees' livelihoods, as well as those livelihoods of the 

Company's suppliers and the thousands of Guatemalan families that benefit from 

the responsible operation of the Escobal mine." 

 

The Company's preliminary Q2 results include production of over 4 million 

ounces of silver, more than 110 thousand ounces of gold, revenue of greater 

than $200 million and an estimated cash balance of over $165 million.  There are 

no significant inventories of concentrate on hand. 

 

Depending upon the success of the Company's appeal and the timing of court 

rulings, the Company anticipates, assuming a three-month suspension period 

resulting in a deferral of production to a future period, the following impacts 

could be expected:  

 

 2017 silver production would be deferred to future periods by 5.1 million 

ounces; 

 Sales and operating costs associated with deferred production would be 

incurred in future periods; 

 Sustaining capital expenditures of $12 million would be deferred; 

 Fixed costs of approximately $10 million would be incurred; 
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 Exploration efforts in Guatemala of $0.5 million would not be incurred; 

and 

 Estimated royalties of $4 million and taxes of $5 million related to 

deferred production would not be accrued; payments would resume upon 

recommencement of production and sales. 

 

Given the possible material impact of suspending operations at the Escobal mine, 

the Company will be reevaluating previous multi-year guidance and can also no 

longer confirm previously issued 2017 guidance at this time. Long term care and 

maintenance plans are under consideration by management and further updates 

will be provided when that evaluation is complete. 

 

35. On this news, the Company’s share price fell $2.74 per share, or 33%, to close at 

$5.56 per share on July 6, 2017. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

36. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a class, consisting of all persons and entities that 

acquired Tahoe’s securities between April 3, 2013, and July 5, 2017, inclusive, and who were 

damaged thereby (the “Class”).  Excluded from the Class are Defendants, the officers and 

directors of the Company, at all relevant times, members of their immediate families and their 

legal representatives, heirs, successors, or assigns, and any entity in which Defendants have or 

had a controlling interest. 

37. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable.  Throughout the Class Period, Tahoe’s common shares actively traded on the 

NYSE.  While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time and can 

only be ascertained through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that there are at least 

hundreds or thousands of members in the proposed Class.  Millions of Tahoe shares were traded 

publicly during the Class Period on the NYSE.  As of December 31, 2016, Tahoe had 

311,362,031 common shares outstanding.  Record owners and other members of the Class may 

be identified from records maintained by Tahoe or its transfer agent and may be notified of the 

pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in 

securities class actions. 

38. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all 
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members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of 

federal law that is complained of herein.    

39. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the 

Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.  

40. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and 

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.  Among the 

questions of law and fact common to the Class are: 

(a) whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants’ acts as alleged 

herein;  

(b) whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during the Class 

Period omitted and/or misrepresented material facts about the business, operations, and prospects 

of Tahoe; and  

(c) to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the proper 

measure of damages. 

41. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable.  Furthermore, as 

the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and 

burden of individual litigation makes it impossible for members of the Class to individually 

redress the wrongs done to them.  There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as 

a class action. 

UNDISCLOSED ADVERSE FACTS 

42. The market for Tahoe’s securities was open, well-developed and efficient at all 

relevant times.  As a result of these materially false and/or misleading statements, and/or failures 

to disclose, Tahoe’s securities traded at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period.  

Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchased or otherwise acquired Tahoe’s securities 

relying upon the integrity of the market price of the Company’s securities and market 

information relating to Tahoe, and have been damaged thereby. 

43. During the Class Period, Defendants materially misled the investing public, 
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thereby inflating the price of Tahoe’s securities, by publicly issuing false and/or misleading 

statements and/or omitting to disclose material facts necessary to make Defendants’ statements, 

as set forth herein, not false and/or misleading.  The statements and omissions were materially 

false and/or misleading because they failed to disclose material adverse information and/or 

misrepresented the truth about Tahoe’s business, operations, and prospects as alleged herein. 

44. At all relevant times, the material misrepresentations and omissions particularized 

in this Complaint directly or proximately caused or were a substantial contributing cause of the 

damages sustained by Plaintiff and other members of the Class.  As described herein, during the 

Class Period, Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false and/or 

misleading statements about Tahoe’s financial well-being and prospects.  These material 

misstatements and/or omissions had the cause and effect of creating in the market an 

unrealistically positive assessment of the Company and its financial well-being and prospects, 

thus causing the Company’s securities to be overvalued and artificially inflated at all relevant 

times.  Defendants’ materially false and/or misleading statements during the Class Period 

resulted in Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchasing the Company’s securities at 

artificially inflated prices, thus causing the damages complained of herein when the truth was 

revealed.  

LOSS CAUSATION 

45. Defendants’ wrongful conduct, as alleged herein, directly and proximately caused 

the economic loss suffered by Plaintiff and the Class.   

46. During the Class Period, Plaintiff and the Class purchased Tahoe’s securities at 

artificially inflated prices and were damaged thereby.  The price of the Company’s securities 

significantly declined when the misrepresentations made to the market, and/or the information 

alleged herein to have been concealed from the market, and/or the effects thereof, were revealed, 

causing investors’ losses. 

SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS 

47. As alleged herein, Defendants acted with scienter since Defendants knew that the 

public documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of the Company were 
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materially false and/or misleading; knew that such statements or documents would be issued or 

disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially participated or acquiesced 

in the issuance or dissemination of such statements or documents as primary violations of the 

federal securities laws.  As set forth elsewhere herein in detail, the Individual Defendants, by 

virtue of their receipt of information reflecting the true facts regarding Tahoe, their control over, 

and/or receipt and/or modification of Tahoe’s allegedly materially misleading misstatements 

and/or their associations with the Company which made them privy to confidential proprietary 

information concerning Tahoe, participated in the fraudulent scheme alleged herein.  

APPLICABILITY OF PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE 

(FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE) 
 

48. The market for Tahoe’s securities was open, well-developed and efficient at all 

relevant times.  As a result of the materially false and/or misleading statements and/or failures to 

disclose, Tahoe’s securities traded at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period.  On July 

28, 2014, the Company’s shares price closed at a Class Period high of $27.31 per share.  Plaintiff 

and other members of the Class purchased or otherwise acquired the Company’s securities 

relying upon the integrity of the market price of Tahoe’s securities and market information 

relating to Tahoe, and have been damaged thereby. 

49. During the Class Period, the artificial inflation of Tahoe’s shares was caused by 

the material misrepresentations and/or omissions particularized in this Complaint causing the 

damages sustained by Plaintiff and other members of the Class.  As described herein, during the 

Class Period, Defendants made or caused to be made a series of materially false and/or 

misleading statements about Tahoe’s business, prospects, and operations.  These material 

misstatements and/or omissions created an unrealistically positive assessment of Tahoe and its 

business, operations, and prospects, thus causing the price of the Company’s securities to be 

artificially inflated at all relevant times, and when disclosed, negatively affected the value of the 

Company’s shares.  Defendants’ materially false and/or misleading statements during the Class 

Period resulted in Plaintiff and other members of the Class purchasing the Company’s securities 

at such artificially inflated prices, and each of them has been damaged as a result.   
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50. At all relevant times, the market for Tahoe’s securities was an efficient market for 

the following reasons, among others: 

(a)  Tahoe shares met the requirements for listing, and were listed and actively traded 

on the NYSE, a highly efficient and automated market; 

(b)  As a regulated issuer, Tahoe filed periodic public reports with the SEC and/or the 

NYSE; 

(c)  Tahoe regularly communicated with public investors via established market 

communication mechanisms, including through regular dissemination of press releases on the 

national circuits of major newswire services and through other wide-ranging public disclosures, 

such as communications with the financial press and other similar reporting services; and/or 

(d) Tahoe was followed by securities analysts employed by brokerage firms who 

wrote reports about the Company, and these reports were distributed to the sales force and 

certain customers of their respective brokerage firms.  Each of these reports was publicly 

available and entered the public marketplace.  

51. As a result of the foregoing, the market for Tahoe’s securities promptly digested 

current information regarding Tahoe from all publicly available sources and reflected such 

information in Tahoe’s share price. Under these circumstances, all purchasers of Tahoe’s 

securities during the Class Period suffered similar injury through their purchase of Tahoe’s 

securities at artificially inflated prices and a presumption of reliance applies. 

52. A Class-wide presumption of reliance is also appropriate in this action under the 

Supreme Court’s holding in Affiliated Ute Citizens of Utah v. United States, 406 U.S. 128 

(1972), because the Class’s claims are, in large part, grounded on Defendants’ material 

misstatements and/or omissions.  Because this action involves Defendants’ failure to disclose 

material adverse information regarding the Company’s business operations and financial 

prospects—information that Defendants were obligated to disclose—positive proof of reliance is 

not a prerequisite to recovery.  All that is necessary is that the facts withheld be material in the 

sense that a reasonable investor might have considered them important in making investment 

decisions.  Given the importance of the Class Period material misstatements and omissions set 
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forth above, that requirement is satisfied here.   

NO SAFE HARBOR 

53. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain 

circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this Complaint. 

The statements alleged to be false and misleading herein all relate to then-existing facts and 

conditions. In addition, to the extent certain of the statements alleged to be false may be 

characterized as forward looking, they were not identified as “forward-looking statements” when 

made and there were no meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that 

could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-looking 

statements. In the alternative, to the extent that the statutory safe harbor is determined to apply to 

any forward-looking statements pleaded herein, Defendants are liable for those false forward-

looking statements because at the time each of those forward-looking statements was made, the 

speaker had actual knowledge that the forward-looking statement was materially false or 

misleading, and/or the forward-looking statement was authorized or approved by an executive 

officer of Tahoe who knew that the statement was false when made. 

FIRST CLAIM 

Violation of Section 10(b) of The Exchange Act and  

Rule 10b-5 Promulgated Thereunder  

Against All Defendants 

 

54. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation contained above as if 

fully set forth herein.  

55. During the Class Period, Defendants carried out a plan, scheme and course of 

conduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing 

public, including Plaintiff and other Class members, as alleged herein; and (ii) cause Plaintiff and 

other members of the Class to purchase Tahoe’s securities at artificially inflated prices.  In 

furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants, and each 

defendant, took the actions set forth herein. 

56. Defendants (i) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (ii) made 

untrue statements of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the 
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statements not misleading; and (iii) engaged in acts, practices, and a course of business which 

operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company’s securities in an effort to 

maintain artificially high market prices for Tahoe’s securities in violation of Section 10(b) of the 

Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5.  All Defendants are sued either as primary participants in the 

wrongful and illegal conduct charged herein or as controlling persons as alleged below.   

57. Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means 

or instrumentalities of interstate commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and participated in a 

continuous course of conduct to conceal adverse material information about Tahoe’s financial 

well-being and prospects, as specified herein.   

58. Defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud, while in 

possession of material adverse non-public information and engaged in acts, practices, and a 

course of conduct as alleged herein in an effort to assure investors of Tahoe’s value and 

performance and continued substantial growth, which included the making of, or the 

participation in the making of, untrue statements of material facts and/or omitting to state 

material facts necessary in order to make the statements made about Tahoe and its business 

operations and future prospects in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 

misleading, as set forth more particularly herein, and engaged in transactions, practices and a 

course of business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of the Company’s 

securities during the Class Period.  

59. Each of the Individual Defendants’ primary liability and controlling person 

liability arises from the following facts: (i) the Individual Defendants were high-level executives 

and/or directors at the Company during the Class Period and members of the Company’s 

management team or had control thereof; (ii) each of these defendants, by virtue of their 

responsibilities and activities as a senior officer and/or director of the Company, was privy to and 

participated in the creation, development and reporting of the Company’s internal budgets, plans, 

projections and/or reports; (iii) each of these defendants enjoyed significant personal contact and 

familiarity with the other defendants and was advised of, and had access to, other members of the 

Company’s management team, internal reports and other data and information about the 
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Company’s finances, operations, and sales at all relevant times; and (iv) each of these defendants 

was aware of the Company’s dissemination of information to the investing public which they 

knew and/or recklessly disregarded was materially false and misleading.  

60. Defendants had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and/or omissions of 

material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to 

ascertain and to disclose such facts, even though such facts were available to them. Such 

defendants’ material misrepresentations and/or omissions were done knowingly or recklessly and 

for the purpose and effect of concealing Tahoe’s financial well-being and prospects from the 

investing public and supporting the artificially inflated price of its securities.  As demonstrated 

by Defendants’ overstatements and/or misstatements of the Company’s business, operations, 

financial well-being, and prospects throughout the Class Period, Defendants, if they did not have 

actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and/or omissions alleged, were reckless in failing to 

obtain such knowledge by deliberately refraining from taking those steps necessary to discover 

whether those statements were false or misleading.  

61. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and/or misleading 

information and/or failure to disclose material facts, as set forth above, the market price of 

Tahoe’s securities was artificially inflated during the Class Period.  In ignorance of the fact that 

market prices of the Company’s securities were artificially inflated, and relying directly or 

indirectly on the false and misleading statements made by Defendants, or upon the integrity of 

the market in which the securities trades, and/or in the absence of material adverse information 

that was known to or recklessly disregarded by Defendants, but not disclosed in public 

statements by Defendants during the Class Period, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class 

acquired Tahoe’s securities during the Class Period at artificially high prices and were damaged 

thereby. 

62. At the time of said misrepresentations and/or omissions, Plaintiff and other 

members of the Class were ignorant of their falsity, and believed them to be true.  Had Plaintiff 

and the other members of the Class and the marketplace known the truth regarding the problems 

that Tahoe was experiencing, which were not disclosed by Defendants, Plaintiff and other 
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members of the Class would not have purchased or otherwise acquired their Tahoe securities, or, 

if they had acquired such securities during the Class Period, they would not have done so at the 

artificially inflated prices which they paid. 

63. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendants violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange 

Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.  

64. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and 

the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases 

and sales of the Company’s securities during the Class Period.  

SECOND CLAIM 

Violation of Section 20(a) of The Exchange Act  

Against the Individual Defendants 

 

65. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each and every allegation contained above as if 

fully set forth herein.  

66. Individual Defendants acted as controlling persons of Tahoe within the meaning 

of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of their high-level positions 

and their ownership and contractual rights, participation in, and/or awareness of the Company’s 

operations and intimate knowledge of the false financial statements filed by the Company with 

the SEC and disseminated to the investing public, Individual Defendants had the power to 

influence and control and did influence and control, directly or indirectly, the decision-making of 

the Company, including the content and dissemination of the various statements which Plaintiff 

contends are false and misleading. Individual Defendants were provided with or had unlimited 

access to copies of the Company’s reports, press releases, public filings, and other statements 

alleged by Plaintiff to be misleading prior to and/or shortly after these statements were issued 

and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the statements or cause the statements to be 

corrected.  

67. In particular, Individual Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in the 

day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, had the power to control or influence the 

particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged herein, and exercised the 

same. 
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68. As set forth above, Tahoe and Individual Defendants each violated Section 10(b) 

and Rule 10b-5 by their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their 

position as controlling persons, Individual Defendants are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the 

Exchange Act. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and 

other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their purchases of the 

Company’s securities during the Class Period.  

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows: 

(a) Determining that this action is a proper class action under Rule 23 of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure; 

(b) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff and the other Class 

members against all defendants, jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of 

Defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; 

(c) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in 

this action, including counsel fees and expert fees; and  

(d) Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.  

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 
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Dated:  _______, 2017 GLANCY PRONGAY & MURRAY LLP 

By:   Draft    

 

Lionel Z. Glancy 

Robert V. Prongay    

Lesley F. Portnoy 

Charles H. Linehan 

1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100 

Los Angeles, CA 90067 

Telephone: (310) 201-9150 

Facsimile: (310) 201-9160 

 

LAW OFFICES OF HOWARD G. SMITH 
Howard G. Smith 

3070 Bristol Pike, Suite 112 

Bensalem, PA 19020 

Telephone: (215) 638-4847 

Facsimile: (215) 638-4867 
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